
-

-

COMMERCE AND IABOR CO.r-MITTEE 

April 10, 1975 

The rreeting was called to order in Roan #213 at 1:05 p.m., on Thursday, April 10, 1975, 
wit.h Senator Gene Echols in the chair. 

PRESENT: Senator Gene Echols 
Senator Warren Monroe 
Senator Margie Foote 
Senator Richard Blakerrore 
Senator Richard Bryan 
Senator •william Raggio 
Senator C-,ary Sheerin (1:35} 

OTHERS PRESENT: See Exhibit "A" 

S.B. 372~ Exerrpts banks and certain loan associations from usury law. 

Ray Knisley, testified in his C1A1I1 behalf. He stated in Southern Nevada there is an 
indu:::try employing about. 105 people mo could not get rroney to finance his cxmtracts. 
This was because the banks did not have the funds to do the financing. Mr. Knisley 
and three other people got together and using their own resources, and. that of oti.11ers, 
de .. ')()si ted the noney in the bank. The bank then went ahead and made the loans. This 
kept sane 80 people from being layed off. During this sarre time :Mr. Knisley carried 
a large cash balance in one of the banks. He was solicited. at various times to nove 
the rroney to California. He was tenpted to do so because of the higher interest rates, 
but did not do so. He stated the rroney was earned here and kept here. Mr. Knisley 
said that this law does not do any part~.cular good. He said when he was a legisla­
tor, they thought they were protecting the rorrower. Competition will protect the 
buyer. Mr. Knisley said all you were doing was drying up funds m .. "a.ilable in the state 
of Nevada to no particular end. This type of law puts the pressure on the public 
officials to take Nevada rroney outside of the state and put it elsewhere. Mr. Knisley 
stated that the surrounding states all have higher interest rates than are available 
i."1 the State of Nevada. He stated that you are literally forcing public officers in 
charge of ti11e state's famds to take Nevada rroncy out arii put it in ot..11e.r states be­
cause their obligaticn is to earn as much as they can. 

Senator Blaken::ire asked if the increased interest rate proposed by california was due 
to the fact that t.here is no limit. Mr. Knisley said yes. Senator Blakei.rore said 
therefore they could pay rrore for your rroney and that puts us at a disadvantage here 
in the state of Nevada. 

Senator Bryan said that S.B. 372 .simply exempts ba.nks and savings and loan associations 
from applicable usury statute of 12 fercent. Senator Bryan asked Mr. Knisley what type' 
of economic dislocations he saw because banks and S&L's are not the only ones providing 
substantial arrounts of capital for investments . .Mr. Knisley said he thought the majority 
of coune::.:-cial loans are supplied this way. Senator Bryan said what abcut the horre build­
ll'B market. Hr. Knisley said when he was in that business they were supplied entirely 
by putting those associations and banks. 

dmayabb
Senate



April 10, 1975

--

-

Harley Hamon, Preside.."lt Nevada State Bank of State of Nevada, testified next. Mr. Hamon 
stated that this bill included only banks and savings and loan associations. He stated 
that he had no objection to any people or organization that is in t..he business of 
su~f)lying m:mey to the ffi:l.rket being included in this bill and \-x:)Uld have no objection 
to ~iaving that section of the bill amended to include those organizations. 'rhis would 
in:::lude rrortgage bankers, credit unions, etc. At this time he passed out copies of an 
article -written by a ITIDl who had studied usury,. This will be labeled EXHIBIT B. 
:Mr. Hamon stated that he would call Bill Kettinger to speak to the committee. Next 
w:>uld be Ken Sullivan, Executive Vice-President of Valley Bank in Las Vegas. He will 
speak about the cost of noney. Next will be Mr. A. M. Smith, Chainren of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer, of First National Bank. 

Mr. Hamon stated that he knew that ffi3.ny people thought that by rerroving usury you are 
hurting the consurrer. He said there was not one of them that wants to take advantage 
of the consurrer and said they had their interests at heart nnre than anyone thought. 

Bill Kettinger,. Vice-President of Paine, Webber, Jackson and CUrtis, me.mbers of the 
New York Stock Exchange, testified next. His written testinony is attached and will 
be labeled A'ITACHMIWr 1. Following his testirrony, Senator Echols comr,ented on the 
california &'1<1 Utah Banks. Mr. Kettinger said that the banks in California and Utah 
are exenpt from usury but the public is not. He stated that the banks are the lenders 
and the public is the depositer and the public is covered under the usury laws. 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

• 

460 

Page TM:> 
April 10, 1975 
Corrnerce and Labor Corrrnittee 

Kenneth J. Sullivan, Jr., Execu1:_ive Vice-President, Valley Bank of Nevada, testified next. 
Mr. SUllivan stated that he had reviewed all the bills arrl pointed out that they needed 
some relief. He said they could not live with the ususry statutes as presently drawn. 
He said it was senseless for them to stay in the rrarket when they have to pay rrore for 
the noney than they can loan it out. Mr. SUllivan said they v.rere forced to stay in the 
IIBrket last sumner because they never, in his banking knowledge, thought they wculd 
ever reach the 12 percent. He said they felt they had a noral obligation to make the 
loans and take it on the chin. He discussed s .B. 439 briefly and said the fallacy was 
the tenninology used. There is no such thing as federal reserve prirre rate. He be­
lieved what they meant was the redisrount rate. He said that the federal government 
did pass a statute that provided for a period of three years that the banks could charge 
five percent over the redisrount rate of the federal reserve bank in that area on the 
90 day commercial paper. Senator Bryan asked if he was saying the regulation pre­
empted the state. Mr. Sullivan said it pre-empted for a three year period. He said the 
only reason he pointed this out was to derronstrate that the federal goveillm2Ilt is aware 
that something had to be done. He stated that he didn't think the usu.ry statutes were 
a problem now but wanted to go on record as saying that in the next year we are going to re in a worse noney cnmch than we we.·e last time. 

Senator Raggio asked Mr. SUllivan to expound upon the federal law that was passed. Mr. 
Sullivan said that it was in effect until 1977 or until the state passed a new law. 
It is on everything except the single family real estate law. •:fae rate right now is 
6 and 3/4. Senator Raggio said \\hen the redisrount rate was 8 percent it applied here 
because at that time you rould charge 13 and 1/2 percent. -Mr. Sullivan stated they never 
did because by the ti.Ire the law was effective it was no longer necessary. Another prob­
lem is the redisrount rate traditionally has always followed the fed funds rate. Fed 
Funds is the day to day borraving from one tank to another of the excess anount of funds 
they have on deposit. The way banks l:alance their books, fed funds are the sane as 
borrowing fran the federal reserve only you borrow from the bank inste.ad of the federal 
reserv-e. Senerally, there is no nore than a half a point spread in that rate. Last 
July when the fed funds rate was 15 and 16 percent, the gove.rn:rrent had a rate of 8 and 1/2 
Senator Raggio asked \\hat the rate was now. Mr. SUllivan said it is presently 5 arrl 1/2 
percent. Mr. Sullivan said his point was that when the rate v.as 8 and 1/2 and they 
were paying 15 and 16 percent for fed funds, you ask why didn't we go to the federal 
reserves. Mr. SUllivan said the answer was simple: they shut the windON. Senator 
Raggio and Mr. Sullivan discussed the fed funds for a short time. Senator Raggio asked 
1,1"..r. SUllivan to explain ha."1 the fed fu."lds rate is set for the corrmittee's knowledge. 
Mr. Sullivan said it was set by supply and demand. They get three or four bids and 
take the lowest bid. Senator Bryan asked if there was any federal legislation on the 
arrount the Lanks can borrow from each other. Mr. Sullivan said that there was none 
and that generally the borrowing is secured by gove.rnrrent pond • 

over 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

• 

.Mr. Sullivan said that our state has always been an imforter of rroney. He explained 
this by saying that they make make a $10,000,000 loan. Tuo Million of that might be 
their rroney and they go out and get other states to participate in the loan. When you 
get to a 12 percent statute and banks in california or New York can charge 16 or 18, you 
rouldn' t get them to participate in a loan. Anythin:; over the arrounts which the banks 
in the state rould harrlle themselves, tl)2 project wruld just die. Senator Raggio asked 
if sare local borrowers dealt out of state banks to avoid this. Mr. Sullivan said yes. 
He said what happened in rrost cases was they couldn't get the loan because it was tied 
to real estate within the state of Nevada. A bank outside the state couldn't rrake the 
loan either. Senator Raggio asked if a rrortgage corrpany or sarebody else oould. Mr. 
Sullivan said no. Senator Raggio said that was difficult for him to understand because 
he knew of sare cases where outside lenders lend rroney at rrore than 12 percent for 
real estate developments in this state. Mr. Sullivan said what they did was inoorporate 
in sarething like Colorado corporation. He said there was a legality about the loans 
they did perfonn. They oontravene the law and took an irrportant attorney's opinion 
that it was not usurious. 

Mr. Sullivan also pointed out that when the prirre rate was 12 percent, if IBM or C'...eneral 
1-btors wanted to borrow from any bank in New York for 12 percent, they still had to 
rraintain a 20 percent corrg;:ensating balance. This rrakes the effective rate on that loan 
14 and 14 and 1/2 percent. In Nevada they cannot· require a compensating balance on a 
loan. If they do that have to figure that as part of the arrount of interest they are 
earning. This is because it p:irt of the stab.ltes. Senator Raggio asked about points 
for rraking a loan. Mr. Sullivan said you oouldn 't do that. 'Iwel ve percent sinple 
interest is all you can get, no p::>ints, no fees. You can reoover your title p::>licy 
costs or anything which is paid to an outside purchaser. 

Mr. Sullivan said if you read the stab.lte, the :p2nalty for a usurious transaction is 
the forfeiture of that usurious interest. The supreme oourt decided that wasn't a fair 
enough penalty and said you would have to forfeit all of your interest. 

Mr. Sullivan said the other two bills, S.B. 437 and S.B. 438, they a:re seeking relief. 
One has a restriction for corporations and the other for corpor~tions _over $100,000 . 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

• 

Page Three 
April 10, 1975 
Ccmrerce and Labor Corrmittee 

Mr. Sullivan said the problem there is that you get into that you are going to force 
tie banks to make their loans strictly to coqorations and to people that can borrow 
over $100,000 and again, you hurt the consurrer. He said there was enough of a compet­
tive situation in this state, that the free supply and demand of rroney, it will regu­
late itself. 

Senator Bryan asked if he had any objection to Mr. Hanron's cornrrent about including 
everyone in this bill. Mr. Sullivan said he thought they would have to because even 
insurance corrpanies are big lenders in this state. That is where they go to get rrost 
of their permanent loans. Senator Raggio asked if the restriction is rerroved from all 
lerrling institutions, why should that be rerroved all together. Mr. Sullivan said he 
had no objections. Senator Raggio asked what the rationale was in other states for 
rerroving it from lending institutions only and not private institutions. Mr. Sullivan 
it was because lending institutions are all regulated. A private individual is not 
being watched like the lending institutions are. Senator Bryan asked if he was talking 
about the shylocking situation. Mr. Sullivan said yes. 

Senator Blakerrore asked what the national banks had to pay. He stated that there were 
rrore national banks in the state. Mr. Sullivan said the national banks are the sarre 
as the state banks. They are ccmpeting in the same rroney markets that they are com­
peting in. When they are located in this state, they are governed by the usury laws 
of the state as far as loans. 

Senator Raggio said there is awarently some very great misconception on the part of the 
public. 'l"he general p.ililic looks u1xm this as a device which serves financial ins ti tu­
tions as something to merely raise the interest rates. He didn't feel that anyune had 
an ar:petite for the legislation if that were the puqose. He said he thought it was 
the gene.ral belief that there is some interaction. He felt this was a misconception, 
but thought it should be spoken to. Mr. Sullivan said right now there are ~ prime 
rates. First National City Bank and h:) others banks have a quarter of a percent 
lc:Mer interest rate than the rest of the banks in the country are showing. He said 
what happens when a bank lowers its pr.ine rate, two things happen. They either stay 
competitive and drop with them or else the company borrowing the rroney will take their 
noney out and go the bank that is lc:Mer. He said anyti.rre you have extra rroney and "Want 
to get loans, you have your interest rate a quarter of a percent lc:Mer than the others. 
Se.11.ator Bryan said he thought what Senator Raggio was speaking to was that very seldom 
do you read about banks increasing the prime rate and being forced to cut back because 
no one followed. It seems like the rrovements up and down seem to be pretty much across 
the board. Mr. Sullivan said what happened was up until 1973 the pr.ine rates were 
rroved on rrore or less a haphazard basis. First National City Bank in 1973 decided they 
were being too haphazard and set up a formula to compute their prime rate. Mr. Sullivan 
explained this in rrore detail • 

ove..r 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

Senator Echols asked if shylocking was strictly an illegal activity. Mr. SUllivan said 
yes~ Senator Echols asked if he thought usury laws could control it. Mr. SUllivan 
said th.ey were already breaking the law and the person why is going to shylock will 
never come reek and plead the usu:ry anyway. The only person -who can claim usury is 
the person who pays the rates. Mr. Sullivan said it basically costs them between two 
and two and a half percent to broker the :rroney. This is your cost before profit. 
Senator Echols asked what percentage of people in middle class situations the ro.nks 
address themselves to. Mr. SUllivan answered by saying that anyone that can get a 
loan on a car is going to get it because the rates charge:1 by the bank are laver tl1an 
those charged by the dealers, 

Senator Raggio asked how the situation last sumrer affected their profits. Mr. Sullivan 
indicated they were down substantially. 

Arthur M. Smith, Chairman of the Board, First National Bank of Nevada, testified next. 
He addressed himself to the question Senator Echols asked about the small consu:rrer. He 
stated that in his particular bank 35 percent of the dollars that they loan are channeled 
into that area. Senator P-aggio asked what anounts he would be talking about. Mr. Smith 
said that would be their installrrent credit loan depart:rrent-autorrobiles, swimrrring p::)Ols, 
bicycles, etc. They are small loans for consumer type purchases. Senator Ec.l-iols asked 
if they were still Il'ak:ing those small loans. Mr. Smith said yes, and they were losing 
on every one of them. They are charged 8 percent discount on these small loans. Senator 
B:ryan asked Mr. Smith to explain the discount. Mr. Smith said if you loan a person SlOO 
you charge him $8 for that loan, which equals $108 he has to pay back. Senator B:ryan 
asked if that was included in the usu:ry rate corrputation. Mr. Smith said that is a 
seperate law. Senator Bryan asked if that was an across the J::oard policy that applied 
t..o all of them, Mr. Smi. th said he didn't think the others rould make that kind of loan . 

.Mr. Smith addressed himself to the question of what the :rroney really costs. Their 
biggest rompet-itor for Nevada dollars is California. Utah would be second. He also 
said he felt noney was going to get tight and they were going to have some relief. 
Mr. _Smith discussed some statistics with the ·oomnittee. They are attached and will be 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

Page Four 
April 10, 1975 
cam.erce and Labor Comnittee 

labeled Exhibit C. The rx>int he was trying to make is that the rroney supply was cut 
off because they were in a p:;riod \ov'here they couldn't attract the dollars because of 
the rates. He stated the bill wasn't a big rip off and they weren't going to be able 
to gouge the people because the conpetition v.Duldn't let them. He stated that the 
New England states have no limit in rrost of the states. 

Senator Sheerin asked about the adjacent states. Mr. Smith said California exenpts 
banks, savings and loans, and certain other lenders. Utah is at 18 i;:ercent, Oregon 
is at no limit over $50,000. 

At this tune there was a break to return to the Senate Session. The m:!eting began 
again at 3:15 p.m. 

Collins Butler, Executive Vice-President, Nevada Savings and Loan Association, testified 
next. He introduced the following people: Robert Banks, President of Home Savings; 
curt Osman, President of Frontier Savings and Loan, Las Vegas; Julian M:x)re, Chairman, 
Board of Directors, Frontier Savings and Loan; Zachary Taylor, President, First Western 
Savings and. Loan; and John Kerr, Vice-President, Arrerican Savings and Loan. 

Mr. Butler stated he V>Duld like to join with the bankers in stated that the savings 
and. loan associations have absolutely no objection to S.B. 372, section 1, being 
amende1 to extend to other lenders of any kind as long as they are responsible lenders. 
He stated they were in total sympathy with the comrercial banks and their conflicts 
they find themselves in the market place. Because of a very undertain and deviating 
ecol10Tf!Y, the supply and derrand of rroney has been very bad for the last b<O years. 
They suH?()rt S.B. 372, Section 1. 

They are in a totally different business than the cormercial bank. The savings and 
loan associations are real estate lenders. They have the right to make home inprove­
rnent loans and loans on rrobile homes. ~ regulation they are primarily restricted to 
.inprove real estate. They are not involved with corporate finance, consUliEr finance, 
unless it directly relates to real estate. The vast rrajoricy of their loans are 
made on homes. They do apartment lending and sane conmercial real estate lending as we'. 
california 's usury law states there shall be a usury rate of 10 percent. However, 
corrmercial banks, insured savings and loan associations, and consurrer finance and other 
lenders are exe.-rnpt from it so they can fluctuate jn the free market pl~.ce. 

Mr. Butler addressed himself to Section 2 of S.B. 372. He stated section 2 does not 
relate to commercial banks, but only to savings and loan assocations. It also does 
not relate to the usury law, according tc their legal counsel. It makes two general 
statements and they would like to have one of those deleted. They have no quarrel with 
the first statement. 'Ihey are asking that the balance of section 2 be deleted and it 
in affect, states that a state chartered savings and loan association cannot rrake a 
loan in which the initial loan fees are discounted, when added to the interest rate ex­
ceed 12 percent. After a short discussion it was determined that the rx>rtion Mr. Butler 
was addressing himself to was the portion to be deleted from the bill, if it passe1. 
Mr. Butler said the situation they find themselves in is that to conpete in todays ratesj 
they are forced to either charge a very high rate, 9 to 12 percent, without any fee. 
The counter problem is that the home owner cannot afford the payments that go with the 
high rates. In the insured loan market, such as FHA and VA loans, the cormon practice 
is the discount rate is set by HUB. The market place detennines the discount. At the 
present time the discount is as high as 7 percent and the coup:m rate is 8 percent. 
This particular section precludes your state chartered. savings and loan associations 
from dealing with insured loans. '11hat leaves the rrortgage bankers and ether unsuper­
vised state lenders to make the VA and FHA loans. They are asking for the right to 
join them to provide the buyer the right to select other lenders. Federally chartered 
savings and loan associations are not under this provision, but state chartered banks 
are, indirectly. ....1 ........ 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

• 

• 

• 

465 

Mr. Butler stated they had noney to loan and they are looking for loans. Section 2 deprives them of the right to go into the ~kep place and to work under the various fErleral regulations they have to contend with, and at the same time corrpete with the same rroney market. They cannot do this. This has not only precluded them from making insurErl loans, but also from buy downs. Mr. Butler explained what a buy down was. He urged the passage of the bill as amended. 

Senator Raggio said he had been referring to other states who do not have usury laws and asked Mr. Butler to enlighten the committee on that. He asked if California had a provision of this nature. Mr. Butler said no, and that in 20 years of experience, he had never seen a provision like this. He said he had never seen a first year fee­rate combination like this. 

Senator Sheerin said if ~ple cannot afford to buy homes at 11 pe......Y"Cent, if we repeal the usury law or am::md 673.330, how will tl1is help pc:.ople solve H1e problem of people buying homes. Mr. Butler sai<l relating to :insured loans, the buyer is only allO:Jed : to pay a one percent fee. Any other fees or .discounts that -are paid must be paid by 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

Page Five 
April 10, 1975 
Comrerce and Lalx:>r Conmi. ttee 

466 

the seller. Financing is available to the purchaser and if a person has to sell his 
hane, he has the option of paying the discount called for in the rroney market. 

Senator Blak.errore asked Mr. Sullivan at what point they close. Mr. Sullivan said it 
depended upon the industry and the length of the loan. Senator Blakerrore said the 
average person cannot pay what is beyond the rates. He asked at what point does this 
apply or mt apply. Mr. Sullivan sited an exarrple for the cor.mittee alx:>ut buying an 
ai:rplane. Senator Blakerrore asked when that point was reached. Mr. Sullivan said when 
the consumer finally uses the object of the loan. The higher the rate of interest the 
less you can borrow. Mr. Butler said the jeopardy rate over the years is increasing. 
It used to be 7 and 1/2 percent. The last disinternediation they had last summer, they 
found people gave up and quit buying somewhere around 10 pera=>nt. Another general rule 
is that anytime their home payment exceeds roughly a third of their gross before taxes, 
they cannot do it. 

Senator Bryan asked if this was a provision that they believed to be unique in savings 
and loan statutes. Mr. Butler said yes. Senator Bryan then asked him to explain the 
genesis of the provision. Mr. Butle..r said he suspected, and this is not fact, that 
t11.e birth of this took place back in the early 1960's to curb such things as a 10 percent 
rate and a 15 percent fee. He thought it was designed as an asset controlling factor 
for. savings and loan. Senator Bryan asked if there were any continuing justifications 
for continuing these provisions, and if not, are there other safeguards to address 
themselves to the type of asset control that apparently was sought to be accorrplished 
by this provision. Mr. Butler said it was his relief there is anple safeguard. The 
insured savings and loan associations throughout the nation are highly regulated and 
regularly examined. The state chartered associations are exarriined every year by two 
sets of examiners-state examiners and federal hon'e and ba.nk examiners. They spend a 
vast majority of the time looking at their quality of asset. 

Senator Sheerin asked if they arrended 111is chapter would t!1ey be able to get involved 
in FHA and VA loans or will you be able to get into the practice of charging the seller 
points also. Mr. Butler said that was the whole point-to be able to get involved in 
the loans that they cannot now touch. He said the point" structure is detennined by 
competition and the supply and derrand, the situation t11.at was described tn you in the 
street. He said they would be able to get involved in FHA and VA loans. Senator Sheerin 
asked what prevented them from doing that row. Mr. Butler said the rroney markets are such 
that the discounts required add up to rrore than 12 percent. 

Senator Echols asked Mr. Butler to briefly explain consurrer product loans t."1at are 
connected to real estate. Mr. Butler sa~d the savings and loan industry cane out 
of the Federal Banking Act in 1933, which was designed by Congress and supervised by 
Federal Horne Bank System. The intent was to help :p20ple buy hon'es over long pericx:1s of 
time with advertised nonthly loan that they could afford, like rent. As the industry 
grew and developed, the savings and loan industry just gradually developed into a real 
estate lender. Senator Echols asked ho.v they tie an autorrobile to a real estate loan. 
Mr. Butler said they cannot make autonobile loans. He explained these consurrer items 
that are connected to real estate would be dishwashers, kitchen appliances, etc. 
Senator Echols asked if they made loans on rrobile horres. Mr. Butler said they were 
allowed to. 

o~r 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

467 

Senator Raggio asked what the affect on the de:i;ositers \'X)uld be in the jurisdiction 
which have eleminated this restriction. He also asked what the affect would be on 
the interest to the depositers and if they would be able to increase the interest on 
o:rtlinary de:i;osi ts. Mr. Butler said speaking of insured institutions, all maximum 
rates that they are able charge are set by the Federal Horne and Bank Board in con­
junction with the Treasury De:p3.rl:rnent. They have the option of paying less, but not 
ITOre. They determine the arrount, the mini.rrum tenn and the maximum rate. The insti­
tutions in Nevada, to his knowledge, are all paying the maximum tenn that is alla.ved. 
There have been a series of rate increases over the last 18 rronths to help the consurrer. 
Their high accounts have gone £rom 6 percent for a three year deposit to as high as 7 
an:l 3/ 4 percent that they are currently paying. Senator Raggio asked if that was on a 
long tenn loan. Mr. Butler said that was on a 6 year account. Senator Raggio asked 
if he was saying that the Federal Horne and Bank Board sets the rate the sane in every 
jurisdiction. Mr. Butler said yes. Senator Raggio asked if there was sC>Ire fluctuation 
on that where the portfolio is bad, etc. Mr. Butler said if there was a supervisory 
problem, they have the option of setting a lower rate. They v.ould not have the option 
of setting a higher rate. What they would do is either Irerge you into a sound insti­
tution or come to you with advances. Senator Raggio said there is no advantage to the 
depositer if they take off the rate that you can charge. Mr. Butler said there wasn't. 
Senator Raggio asked if that was true with t.he banks. Mr. Sullivan said it was now. 
He stated there was an act in congress nOi/ where they are reviev,ing the entire financial 
structure of the United States. One of the recormendations in there is to phase out 
Regulation Q, which detennines the maximum arrount they can pay. Senator Raggio asko:i 
if that applied to both ronks and Savings and Loans. Mr. Sullivan said yes. Senator 
Raggio said it was his understanding tliat on _large cash dep)sits in California they : 
are·able to pay 13 percent. Mr. Sullivan said it exerupts deposits over $100,000. 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

Page Six 
April 10, 1975 
Conu:erce and Labor Committee 

Mr. Butler said he would also clarify that point. He said the savings and loans have 
that right also over $100,000. However, their typical account is a $3,000 account. 

Senator Sheerin said if the priroe rate were 3 percent, there would be no problem. He 
asked Mr. Butler if that were a fair statement. Mr. Butler said he thought that was true. 
Senator Sheerin askErl. what prime rate created a problem in Nevada. Mr. Butler said, in 
his opinion, somewhere around 9 to 9 and 1/2. Senator Sheerin said if rroney is costing 
2 and 1/2 percent and you have a profit of 3 and 1/2 percent and you subtract that from 
12, would that give you the same answer. Mr. Butler said no, there are a series of con­
flicts there. He said they could not go to a home tuyer and say 9 and 1/2 percent 
because they cannot afford the paym211.ts and will not buy. They cannot discount that to 
a la,.,er rate the home 1:uyer can afford because of the provision they are discussion. 
By regulation they are now paying as high as 7 and 3/4 percent. They cost of rroney 
has gone up dramatically in the last 18 rronths. Their operating costs, without making 
any additions to reserves and without showing any kind of a profit, are at a range of 
1 and 1/2 to 1.7 percent. 

Don Brudeen, Chairman of the Legislative Committee of the f'.brtgage Bankers Association, 
testified next. Mr. Bradeen stated he wanted to corrplllTlent the banks and savings and 
loan associations for recognizing the fact that other lenders should be included in 
the exerrptions of S.B. 372. He suggested th2 exemption be to any federally licensed 
or state licensed regulated 'lenders. Senator Raggio asked who that would include. 
Mr. Brodeen stated that would included rrortgage companies and just anyones who is in 
the lending business. Mike Melner, Director of the Departnent of Co:rrirrerce, said that 
was right and listed the state charterErl. banks, federally chartered banks, federally 
and state chartered savings and loan associations, out of state licensing S'Jstem, rrort­
gage corrpanies that are federally approved, and credit unions that are federally 
chartered. Private corporations wouldn't be licensed as lending instib.ltions under 
the language in the bill. Mr. Harley Hamon said that pension funds would also be 
included. · 

At this time Mr. Brodeen presented the committee with ~ exhibits. They will be 
labeled Exhibit D and Exhibit E. They pointed out the fact that rrortgage corrpanies 
are a very real source of fun:1.s for the state of Nevada. In 1972, 1973, and 1974, 
u.11 the combined earnings of all the banks in Clark County was $383,000,000 plus. 
This infonnation was contained in Exhiliit E and Mr. Brodeen went on to explain it. 
Senator Raggio said that alrrost suggestErl. that they hadn't had ,ny trouble making 
loans. Mr. Brodeen said they did not have the problems t."1at the savings and loan did 
because they oould make it up in the discount. 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

469 

Senator Bryan referred back to the question Senator Sheerin asked about the prilre rate. 
The trouble area is around 9 to 9 and. 1/2. Senator Bryan asked Mr. Brodeen if there 
was sane triggering mechanism which could be built into the law to provide, when reached, 
an escalator for the kinds of series rates would be eleminated. Mr. Brodeen said if 
you had an escalator factor, you would have to go back as far as two years to change 
the usury laws. Senator Bryan said he was speaking of somethim that would be triggered, 
sane event or circumstance in the market that when rates reached a certain level that 
the provisions are lifted by a certain percentage point. Mr. Brodeen said that his 
colleagues could answer this question better than he. Mr. Dick Bissett spoke from the 

· audience in response to Senator Bryan's question. He stated that there is always a 
desire to tie it into something that could be defined, like prime rate is so easily de­
fined. There are some borrowers who need rroney who represent an element of risk. The 
difference between prime and whatever the cap is on prime cones into effect, with that 
risk situation he is not going to be able to get rroney at any price. When you are pric­
ing that into the loan and the prime is at 4 and you add your risk factor to it, the 
price you charge for the risk involved may be well above prime. Senator Bryan asked if 
there were any states that adopted a fo:rm where, for exanple, sorreone like Mike Melner 
w:>Uld have regulatory authority by law upon findings of fact being made by the depart­
ment head indicating that the market conditions are at such a extreme circumstance 
and authorize him by regulations to increase so the rroney could flCM in. .Mr. Brodeen 
said he was not aware of any state set up like that. Fran Breen said there were three 
st.ate, New Jersey, New York, and Pennsylvania, that have a similar arrangerrent. He 
did explain each state briefly. 

Senator Sheerin asked Mr. Sullivan if there would be a different trigger that would be 
applied to banks than savings and loans. Mr. Sullivan said yes becau~ the banks rates 
are always going to be higher than the savings and loans. 

Roland Oakes, Associated General Contractors, testified rext. The contractors, at the 
meeting of February 14, directed Mr. OaJ<:es to prepare such a bill. He found out that 
the bankers were preparing the bill themselves. Their interest in this legislation is 
that in 1973 their total volurre was al:out $620,000,000. Their volurre in 1974 was about 
$440,000,000. Taking into account a 12 percent inflation factor, they lost in excess of 
33 and 1/3 percent of t.beir volurne from 1973 to 1974. At the present time in their 
industry they have between 20 and 30 percent of their ·employees out qf wrk. The people 
they build for· are unable to corrlj_:iete for sufficient nnney to go ahead with t~e projects 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

-

Page Seven 
April 10, 1975 
COIUTerce and Lal:or Corrmittee 

that would provide '¼Drk for the people Mr. Oakes represents. They wanted to go on 
record as bei..i'1.g in favor of the bill as it is drafted. 

Paul Argeres, Nevada Association of Real tors, testified next. He stated the real tors 
are very much aware of the probiems that have been called to the attention of the comnitteE 
in this :rreeting. He stated they were in favor of this bill with certain rrodifications. 
They feel is is unrealistic to have a 12 percent usury limit. His industry is drarna.ti­
call y affected by this type of legislation. They do not prosper very well under high 
interest rates. They do feel that they do have to have sane rroney available to them if 
the rroney market develops to the extent where interest rates in excess of 12 r:ercent do 
become a realistic thing. Mr. Argeres said what was going to happen, particulru:y in 
his rnarket, is interest rates if this law is enacted and 12 r:ercent usury rates is 
eleminated, they don't think they will be selling a great deal of property. Ha.vever, 
he said it might make the difference between losing rroney tefllI:X)rarily and going broke. 
Mr. Argeres said the present wording, which exempts only banks and savings and loan 
associations, is only a partial solution to the problem and, in fact, very unfair. They 
would suggest that anyone be exerrpt from usury laws. Mr. Argeres said that speaking 
for Washoe County along, as much as 011e half of the loans rrade are not rrade by insti­
tutions. This would be real estate loans. He said he was talking primarily of a sub­
stantial p::>rtion of the market where people who are selling their property carry back 
a portion of their equity. Mr. Argeres stated that he would hope any legislation that 
would be considered would permit everyone,.mcluding institution, to be exempt in this 
limit. They feel it '¼Duld be advisable, perhaps to have sorre kind of limit. They t.ave 
no specific recormendation, tut feel that 12 r:ercent is very unrealistic. They also 
wanted to go on record as being opp::>sed to any legislation that sets a minimum, par­
ticularly S.B. 437 and S.B. 438. They feel the $100,000 limit is unrealistic because 
your are leaving out the rrajority of the rnarket the realtors are in. Senator Raggio 
asked Mr. Argeres what his recommendation for a limit would be. Mr. Argeres said 
he hoped it might be sarething which would fluctuate. Senator Raggio asked if it was 
the posi~.'.)n of his association that there shouldn't be an. artificial rroney limit. 
Mr. Argeres said they feel that on real estate loans there should re no minirn.nn set. 
He stated he also dismssed this legislation with the president of Northern Nevada 
Home Builders Association and they have adopted a p::>sition identical with t.he realtors. 
They were unable to attend the neeting, and the representative, Len Cooper, asked that 
their feelings be related to the comnittee. 

R.J. Bissett, Weyerhauser Ivbrtgage Company, testified next. He stated the situations 
the banks gave also relate to t,1-ie rrortgage banking industry. He addressed himself to 
Senator Bryan's question about capping or defining this. He said this gets dawn to a 
basic defin..tion of usury. The financial world today is dealing with floating rates 
and fixed rates. If you attempt to provide caps in the :fo:rm of a fixed rate, it is 
going to adversely affect floating rates and conversely affect the others. You can't 
have a situation where carmittnents are :rrade and then you have rapid changes and the 
whole thing changes. The profitable venture is no longer profitable recause the 
income is fixed on the cost of the seller. He stated it was a very difficult definition 
and said at this point that the present law is ver:y restrictive and is hurting the state 
of Nevada. 

over 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

• 

-

-

471 

Lee Bergstrom, Kapoury, Armstrong, Turner and Company, testified next. They are a 
- certif ie::1 public accountin_::r finn throughout the state. He was representing his clients, 
particulary small business clients, who went through a very bad time. He was concerne::1 
about the ability of his clients to obtain the financing they have to have to survive, 
nuch less to grow. 

Mr. Bergstrom addresse::1 himself to Senator Bills 437, 438, and 439 for a mrent. He 
this bills were discriminatory to the small borrower. 

Mr. Bergstrom urged an anendment of S.B. 372 to l:)2rmit all lenders to make loans at 
whatever the no.mal market interest nay call for. They -....ould also encourage the defeat 
of s.B. 437 and S.B. 438, which they don't believe are in. the public interest because 
of being discriminatory to the small businessman. They -....ould also encourage the defeat 
of S.B. 439 because they believe it is defective as to terminology. 

Senator Bryan said he realized the expressed preference was to sirrply eliminate the cap. 
He said he did realize there was a problem and asked what Mr. Bergstrom's first prefer­
ence YPuld be as an alternative. Mr. Bergstrom said that he hadn't studied the ques­
tion so his response -....ould be that the rremb2rs of the financial comnunity -....ould be better 
able to answer this question. He did say that perhaps a barorreter type would be right. 

Stanley Franklin, President of Sierra Charter Corporation, testified next. He said he 
felt that one of the things missing is the fact that what happened last sumrer is the 
first time we have ever had a prime rate of 12 percent. This hit him personally and 
his company. They cmploye approxirrately 200 people th1:oughout the state. Last July 
and August they att.empt.ed to borrow several hundred thousand dollars., which they have 
l::orrowed on many occas~ons · throughout the past years. . They \~rg told . they couldn't 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

Page Eight 
April 10, 1975 
Corrrrerce and Labor Comnittee 

472 
This was the first time in th2 history of the conpany they were willing to pay the 
high rate and they were turned do.,m. After considerable hassle with the bank, and 
they didn't succeed with the loan, they ended up laying off about 40 people. Part 
of the rroney was to be used to pay county taxes and they didn't pay their county 
taxes. Their concern is that this is going to happen again. Mr. Franklin .said the 
best trigger the country has had for 200 years is free enterprise. He said it was the 
duty of the committee and the obligation of the legislature to return the right to 
borrow rroney to the people of the State of Nevada at any time. He said he would rather 
borrow rroney and pay one or two percent nore and stay in business and feed his family 
and keep the people working than close his doors and go bankrupt. 

I 

Mr. Brodren said he pointed out that Nevada is a tax poor state. He didn't think you 
could relate the usury laws to any other state in the union. There is no state that 
falls in the same category that Nevada does. 

Senator Echols remarked on the fact that there was no press present in the room and 
this was a ve.._ry important and critical issue for the State of Nevada. He also com­
mented briefly on S.B. 381, which prevents sex discrimination against credit appli­
cants for sex or marital status. Fran Breen said he had many arrendrrents which he has 
given to Senator C::,0jack, who is the sponsor of the bill. Mr. Arthur Smith said the 
suggestions given to Senator Gojack were to put t11e bill in conformance with the federal 
bill. The bankers would support it. 

Mike Melner, State C'omnerce Director, testified next. One of the charges of the depart­
nent is to protect the consurrer and their interests. The Corra:rerce Department supports 
S.B. 372 as it allows licensed lending institutions albeit ferleral or state the authority 
to make loans beyond usury limitations. 

Senator Raggio said they had heard some recornrrendations that the bill should apply to 
everyone. Everyone ought to have the right to lend; thats the free •:mterprise way in 
the system. Senator Raggio said he would like to have an anS\ver to that. If free 
enterprise controls this, why does it matter if we take it off licensed and regulated 
lenders or anyone else. :t-tr. Melner said these people are held to a much higher stan­
dard. The SUP3rvision at banks and savings and loans go through the maintenance of 
reserves and accounts. The suJ;X3rvision they received brings t."1ern up to a higher level 
and they are nuch rrore responsible. Because they are held to that higher standard they 
are probably entitled to nore in the ·way of rights in the market place. 'When you say 
free enterprise, how free is it really. There are many barriers on them already that 
are placed there in the interest of the consumer. Senator Raggio said he didn't want 
to get into a situation where saneone says you' re helping consurners bt .. t stifling com­
petition. He asked why they should allaw the banks or the savings and loans to loan 
at 15 percent and not, say the person with some rroney to lend. Mr. Melner said he 
didn't think that person was canpeting for rroney in the market and purchasing nnney 
in the market place the way these people are. This person is probably investing their 
own rroney and if they can get 15 percent, that's fine. He said these P30ple \..Ould be 
investing their own funds where the banks, etc. , would be investing public funds. 
Senator Raggio asked about the person tha.t takes a second rrortgage back on the sale of 
a property. Senator Blakerrore asked if that would be rrore classified than the guy 
that sells an occasional autorrobile. Senator Bryan said there is no exenption for 
an occasional sale. 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

-

-

473 

::. .,.~: \,:· 
·1-- ., • 
\< ~ser.ator Bryan asked Mr. Melner if the oorrmittee didn't want to take the ceiling off, 1

' did he have same alternative in mirrl for a triggering mechanism which ¼Ould operate to 
lift the usury rate for all of them. Mr. Melner said he sup:[X)sed there could be a 
mechanism sorrehow related to prime except that he saw the problem or a greater degree 
of risk. You would get nore out of it because of the risk and in floating from prirre, 
it may be too many points for normal. He did say he thought triggering mechanisms 
¼Ould be rather difficult. He didn't know what the logical line \\Ould be. Senator 
Raggio asked what the reason was for a usury law to begin with. Mr. Melner said when 
noney was at low rates, people who couldn't borro.v were being gouged and forced to pay 
excessive rates. It is certainly consumer protection in its original fonn. Senator 
Raggio said evidently the free enterprise system didn't work because the usury law was 
:i.m_fx)sed. What was the reason for that. Mr. Melner said maybe it was the heavy-handed 
and irresponsible nature of lenders at that time. 'Ihey were much less supervised, regu­
lated and supervised. Zachary Taylor, First Western Savings, pointed out to the oorrmittee 
that an article explaining usury had been presented to the oonrnittee and that this article 
,,uuld be very beneficial to them in understanding it. 

... 
Senator Echols said there are private investors who have sorre business expertise who 
are willing to get involved in a risk capital situation. They are willing to do this 
unless they can enjoy a greatE-~ return for their noney. What is happening as a result 
of this is that sare of them are circumventing the usury law by going about this methoo 
of financing in various devious methods. He asked why everyone couldn't be included. 
Mr. Melner said he was CX)rnp0llcd b:>th ways because he can see toth sides. He said he 
couldn't answer the question directly. 

dmayabb
CL



April 10, 1975

• 

-

¥age Nine 
April 10, 1975 
Corrmerce and Labor Ccmnittee 

Mr. R.J. Bisset returned to the table to respond to Senator Bryan's desire for some 
suggestions. There should be consideration of exemption of the financial institutions 
as been described from usury. These institutions handle by far the bulk of the trans­
actions. For those not under that definition, they simply consider raising the fixed 
percentage limit, which would provide so~ relief. Considering we look at interest 
rates tcxlay in ct far different context than they looked at interest rates men the 
legislation was drawn. 'Iwelve percent seared to be a figure they \vOUld never reach, 
but obviously they have gone W=ll beyond that. He stated the legislature i:reets in 
two nore years and if t..'1-iere is a financial crisis in the interim the institutions 
that have to function will be able to function and if it hurts indi victuals, Hie next 
legislature could look at that hurt and address itself to correction t..here. Raising 
it for those people not exempted would provide sane relief for the privat":'! person. 

Sena.tor Raggio said it was not so rruch the question of relief. He said he was trying 
to understand the philosophy fully. He didn't want to be m a r:osition of discrimina­
ting by saying they are trying to favor sornerody in the noney lending market. On the 
other hand what 11..r. Bisset suggested is the limit on the individual lender. He asked 
why. Ee asked if there was a r:ossibility of abuse. He said if the r:ossiblity exists 
there, why doesn't it exist everywhere. Mr. Bisset said his personal philosophy is 
to agree with Senator Raggio and say everyone. · 

Ken Sullivan said the financial iustitution are in COI'llf:etitive business. If they gouge 
the customer this t.irre, the customer, wren the market changes, cannot get out of that 
situation and never get into it again. Whereas, tli.e man who is rot in a corrpetitive 
business doesn't have the same governing factor in the free market system. 

Roland Oakes said the contractors discussed in sane detail rasmg the limit. They \vOUld 
be in favor of takin] the limit out carrpletely. They feel that free enterprise would 
take care of setting up proper rates. Last surrrner people were lookmg for noney at 
18 and 20 percent to go ahead and canplete their projects. In view .1f the substantial 
deficit the federal governrrent is looking at next year, he didn't knew mat they would 
be looking at in the noney market. 

Fran Breen, in reference to S.B. 381, submitted a copy of the letter that was given 
to Senator Gojack. He stated that Senator Gojack was studying them now. (EKhibit F} 

There being ro further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

Kristine Zahner, Comnittee Secretary 

• 

dmayabb
CL



. SENATE Ccztomerx:e ± La..borcoMMITTEE 

• • ', •• • o-~ ,. -

475 

1--!~~ .;.,... _________ o_R_G_AN_I_Z_A_TI_O_N_ _ ________ ._A_D_D...,.RE_S_s., __ ____,,P,.,,,._~..,,,..?,...,,~E=-N~U=MB=E=R= 
d . 

;·' *NQTll_~rtiD~E .l?RINT ALL THE INFORMATION _CLEARLY. ____ ..... ----·------·----

_· . ~-Zs L EC t,, Ai,, __ &npd:r:__i,e_,~t-1.. -.7 ___ __,,~_,,:?.ff.:; - o <JJ 1/~Z 
. i!. ·.. ., . . . ,,-;st~~ IJ.,[ ~-«{ 4- .LI. , 

· ii . /f) hc-:1 I.J <:!jAJ . _)c, c. c ~ ,//'} s- d . .T £' ,-:! /2//2.,,_c~-, .c."'if ;)/4 ,;/ . ?3 2 -1..9 </ '/ 

-··. · 
7

i\n,,,,i,LfJJ,r2:,1GJr.. (/AJ,h./J!imft,.,1-y,;. Cc,_ ;/<.;.,'f,tf- J... //. . 33if - 7 J. 7 ~ . ~·' , _r_ . . · · r~o -i,e.r~~ z-.v.<J lPo . 
. ):f. J:>1sse fl _ 0k_'1£ 6 hl'le..v$.e1. /l7o~,4BZ._ C~. -4'~f u_6,.,~ 7s;;L- 13<..!y 

· • c { . . · '-J· ~ I -o <..u - 0 \"\, c,_ ~ • _ 

__________ ,,, ___ · __ t).....,~_c_c-.._:\_· _ ..... _('".._---"-n_'-\__,-;;;_· · ~ L~c:::...: \'( · L ~s:. Ve ;';r-.,,._..:,. $ 75 - 1' 3 "'f ~:.,. 

.· M2~-~ . :e,;, )~IYt,¼ dooo C; J 5J G--u~._-r} s:2'--ci-?Jt .~7(/, (j O .. 

-rl c~L'J,)c: . /1 ,.--, . / I . . 0 c)< .2-ic· ~ ;e~---"; ? 'S" b 2-6 e:~, "· 
·.•· .: ·. l.~--~SA~.J?A ,..,_,l. _,0{.. H~". LA.s ·v<-,As 3J ✓-9 2..,·, · 

.'•:::::'.,::-t . ·~\~~ ·· ... -s_ n. '--~~ ,~~e-\'\ ~-~-\\\~ - ~~~~ :i-:2-- 0, -qJ I l 
- . . u"~ 

... • w • '-tc.&ct ~..,.., M.A<~~~-M.~_9~_,=c:,~ INJlut"MfiYL J..Mv~ &z.q ... --f iolt. 

,,__---,.i..,.......,,,~ .- . - .· · .. /4~.o..L..1!.£~14.l.ro.rr ..:. R~""t> - 'J'Z.l- ~27 

__ 7. ~B · 1 i6 &»A! ,,UE )/. 8~:5o~ e-{7 {i;:1!EK2 5 1f?cvu ·-.. ~2</-<b~Ycf 
. ; . '! ' ·. . . . .· . . . i 

.' ... i!L Q{I /1"'7c-, C: k W-<--S~1V )P,?T<,; c?::;·, c"£ /~/E V L-4 5 /{.:;c_ ~>. '7 3.?-23 iC 

\·,.. t ;:?r7r1 .·/4-n ~:-: .c/ ~?) ~Et, ) ??? lef.·. ·,; .. 'cf CZ.~-! F ',j- 1J ,)- 73-z C, I 5 ' 



SENATE COMMITTEE 
! 
' . 

--------- 476 
.. ROOM t_' __ _ 

DAY DATE ------------
---·-··---··--- --·--··- --· 

ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER 
-- ---""'·=···""."·· ·""'"'·· ·,....,•·-=-=·· ~= 

·•NOTE: ___ PLEASE PRINT ALL THE INFORMATION CLEARLY.····•··--·--------------
. . 

32.3-3) 3.t :; _J),/. -3~-JL-~~,Lv-_L~ ~ 
1---------·:--~~,.__Q~·-· ~~SD:o'M. ~!l~,q bm.C'rQ~Vl\e,,~l.. :::rz..nr::i 'aJ 1,1, .... 941 \ .. 

. :! ~_)3.e4_c_B~-1Y'LLS __ J:/_(JA-1e· S.,8_e/2Al,s /r~o 7FC-7o.u_ 

J./ __ £· ✓11~eA-~~,~s 4!$ &,z-:J 3c1:J·r7~2 
--- V ~ -

. --. 
I I' ''I ( 

--- . 

i-----+---'-+--"--~~<+--=------f.r_CZ':?_: _r ~. c...c_" f:Sll"R_!~l ~~t~rV(;S ;- to~· Vc(Ha \, .. 

· .• 

., 
i 

·! ., 
·.,, 

;j 
:I ., 
" • 1 

:1· 
,j 

. , 
'l 

,.-~ 

•. 

--------------

• 

• 

------------. --·-·--·------··-·•·-----·-··---•-·-

·, ,, 
; ., 
. _ ........ ,,,,, ,. __ ~,; -~- ...,..,,_., .. ,, .. : \,.,,. ,, 

----·•---------·-·-·--

---··•---·-·---·------·----------



·• 

• 

son Cit} 
Deadline: 

THE BEGINNING AND THE END OF USURY 

;for its next 
9 Dec 74 

•usury' as precisely defined by Webster is the'lending of money 477 

at an unlawful rate of intere~t.' 'Usury 1 as defined by the 

legislatures of the 50 states is far more complicated. Whether 

or not there is any relation between the original concept of 

usury and the multiple versions now used is for the academic·ians 

to .establish. 

Suprisfngly the origin o~ usury is in neither law nor economics 

--it was a creation of theology--the dogma "of the Catholic Church 

established usury as a sin about the year 750 AD. That the 

Church, at least, had altered.its position was obvious when in 

1950, Pope Plus XII in q.n address to the employees of the Bank 

!Jf Rome repudiated the opinion that the banking profession in-

. evitably expo~ed one to the danger of losing eternal salvation . 

The right to ~~terest on money loaned became acceptable pri­

marily because the lender lost the use of his funds and thus 

the earning power of the money. Just as usury' was treated 

original.ly as a sin--it takes on some of the same characteristics 

today--albeit for different reasons--now.it's anti-consumer. 

The consumer is led to believe that a restrictive usury law 

.will produce low-cost. real estate loans • 
• 

There is but one simple.overriding fact to remember--usury or· 

not---the cost of money will be determined. by the price the 

market will accept and the degree of risk taken by the lender. 

The real problem is one that must be carefully considered-­

the fact that there are 50 different state usury laws. Un_duly 



478 

restrictive usury laws actually work against the consumer by I denying mortgage credit to the people of the state. Consider 

the situation in ~issouri with an 8% usury status; would you 

as a Missouri-based lender invest in local mortgages when you 

could buy loans in California yielding 10%? How does usury 

help the people of Missouri who want to buy a home? 

-

Usury has been held out to the public as their protection 

against exorbitant interest rates. It fails in every ~ay to 

provide this protection. The fact is that money will be avail­

able within any given area only as long as the price is right. 

When the price is not right, one of two things happen. If 

the price is too high, the borrower will not borrowi if too 

low, the lender will not lend (at least not in hi.s home terri­

tory). 

In the third and fourth quarters of 1974, we have seen interest 

rates on home loans climb to as high as 12%. Today, they are 

under 10%. Why did interest rates drop? Very simple, too few 

borrowers were willing to pay 12% for money. So we had a 12% 

loan rate, but few borrowers who would accept that rate. 

Other states with no usury limits on real estate lo~ns were 

making .some loans, but they like us were not getting many 

applications either. So what happens--lenders can't attract 

customers at 12%--lendable funds accumulate, and the rate is 

lowered until a level is reached that the borrower will accept. 

• Housing and home loans are like any other product, you'll buy 

only if the price is acceptable to you. When the price is too 

2 .. 



./ 
,.., 

high, you find a substitute or stay where you are. Usury 

, as a limitation to protect the consumer is a myth. The 

borrowers set the rates, not the lender. Usury is only a 

means of confusing the issue--confusing it by saying the 

user of funds is being harmed when he pays interest over 

what is set by the state law--tell that to the home buyers 

i.n. ~isf;iQ1:t.ri that have an 8% usury law and no mortgage • 

money. 

-

-

No real estate lender can stay in business if his funds. are 

over priced and unacceptable in his market. He has a choice 

--drop his rates to a level that_people will accept or find 

an area where he can get the market price for·his money. Re­

cently, an example of this type of reaction was displayed 

when the market interest rates for loans exceeded the limits 

set by Nevada's usury law. California_lendy~s, particularly 

banks and savings and loans, stopped lending in Nevada. As 

long as lenders have a choice of markets because of varying 

usury rates, those states with a low usury rate are going to 

be capital short. Usury rates should be abandoned in every 

state. 

The emphasis on the cost of money frequently completely ob­

scures the benefits that come from owning a home. The only 

thing that should cause concern is that there are funds always 

available.at market prices so you can buy the best inflation 

hedge in the country--a home. The home buyers of Nevada will 
. 

set the price of money. Usury only pr.events lending-:-it is 

3 



•• 

• 

• 

480 

never a stimulant. If you don't believe it, look at the de­

velopment of California where neither banks nor savings and 

loans have a usury limit. 

With California's banks and savings and loans free from usury 

limits, it doesn't require much imagination to follow the di­

rection of flow for loan funds in a period of rising interest 
. . . 

rates. To give proper background to the discussion, mortgage 

interest rates in 1946 were 4%, and in 1914--12%. Obviously, 

what happened is that interest rates behave just as the price 

of other goods, not an unusual phenomenon. This problem 

caused by usury limits was displayed this year when lenders 

accustomed to making loans in Nevada stopped lending because 

of our usury law and put money into other markets at rates 

that were in keeping with the relationship between the demand 

and supply of money. Today those rates have dropped and loan 

funds are again ~vailable in Nevada--and why are loan funds 

availahle--because the supply of money exceeded the demand, 

and interest rates have dropped to attract borrowers. 

Recently~ new dimension has been added to the loan interest 

rate picture--the Federal Government. A new public law, 

193-SQl, dated October 29, is an act 'to authorize the regu­

lation of interest rates payable on obligations issued by 

affiliates of certain depository institutions, and for other 

purposes.' Title II of this act involves 'interest rate 

amendments regurding state usury ceilings on business and 

agriculfural loans.' Section 202 of the act involves the 

4 



•· 

-

481 

Federal Deposit Insurance Act {commercial banks) and Section 

203 involves the National Housing Act (savings and loans). 

In essence, both sections say that in order to prevent discrim­

ination against state chartered banks and insured savings and 

loans should the interest rate allowed in this new law exceed 

the state's rate, such bank or savings·and loan would be 

permitted to charge a rate of interest on business or agricul­

tural loans {of $25,000 or more), notwithstanding any state 

constitution or statute which is hereby preempted for the 

purposes of this section, of not more than 5% in excess of the 

discount rate on 90-day commercial paper at the Federal Re-

... .se.rve Distri~t Bank. The def in.i ti,0n of business loans .o.r 

agricultural loans is not given and needs to be explained, 

but the implication of the whole law is that states may expect 

continued erosion of their authority. What prompted the Federal 

Government to produce this act isn '.t known, but it appears to 

allow state chartered financial institutions to ignore the 

state usury laws in the two instances mentioned. - It certainly 

gives federally chartered banks and saving& and loans a separate 

limit on usury which varies from the state law. 

If this type of legislation is to continue, a discussion of 

state usury may be academic. State governments should recognize 

their problem and make their own adjustments--including the re­

moval of usury. The State of Nevada should not create any barriers 

to the constant flow of capital so necessary to permit the total 

5 



I 
;· 

,. 

-• 

-

• 

482 

development of the State's potential. The public's interest 

will best be served by allowfng market competition to produce 

mortgage funds. 

;, 

6 



TOTAL DEPOSITS 

GROWTH 

PERCE:-l'TAGE 

..... 

TOTAL LOANS 

GROWTH 

PERCENTAGE 

LOAN TO DEPOSIT 
PERCENTAGE 

-

STATISTICS FOR BANKS IN THE STATE OF NEVADA 

19.69 1970 1971 . 1972 1973 1974 

$997,958,000 $1,152,648,000 $1,371,209,000 $1,545,067,000 $1,752,021,000 $1,752,410,000 

. 154,690,000 . 218,561,000 

15'.5% 19% 

173,858,000 

. . ··• 
. 12. 7% 

206,954,000 '389,000 

13.4% .2% 

. $~59,138,000 . $ 708,130,000 $ 769,962,000 $ 930,420,000 $1,133,207,000 $1,161,551,000 

48,992,000. 61,832,000 160,458,000 202,787,000 28,344,000 

6.9% 8.7% 20.8% 21.8% 2.5% 

66.0% 61.4% 56.2% . 60.2% 64.7% 66.3% 

-



-~ 
(I) 
~ 

68-69 69-70 70-71 71-72 72-73 73-74 

Gaming Taxes · 33,297 39,260 41,655 · 54,880 62,256 74,370 

:;rowth 5,963 2,395 13,225 7,376 12,114 

.. 
Po:rcent.:i.i:;e. 17.9 6.1 31.7 13.4 · • t;. 19. 5 

So.lcs Taxes 38,997 54,720 60,113 68,372 79,886 93,243 

Growth 15,723 5,393 8,259 11,514 13,357 

Percentage 40.3 9.9 13 .• 7 16.8 16.7 

- •• 



THE l\lORTGAGE SCENE 

"Usury laws intensify the harm whenever 
the housing market is already hurting ... 

485 

and they han1per attempts to rescue the market" 

There were some events of 1974 that had a 
s;,ecial flavor even for a year of ultra-tight 
money; 

e •ln-Flo:zida,.Ari:ron:uind Texas, builders 
completing their units .and ready to close 
sales found themselves hit ·with unexpected 
discoun~s on their conventional mortgages, 
ranging up to seven points. In many cases, 
this convened what had been profitable 
projects bto net losses. 

o In California, the tum in financing 
came so suddenly that many sales couldn't 
be closed after the buyer had moved in. Con­
ventional financing dried up almost com­
pletely for a time and the only FHA-VA fi. 
nancing was by lenders wiliing to take a loss 
of up to 3~'i points on each loan. For months, 
'\irtually the only source of construction 
money was an eastern commercial bank. 

o In Missouri, such few sales as took 
place, conventional or FHA-VA, carried up 
to 1 S points of discount to the seller. 

o In New York, com·cntional loans were 
availabie only to "customers with meaning­
ll historic deposit relationships" with a 

tnini..-num of one-third down. 
o In Maryland there were virtually no 

conventional mortgages made for more than 
n-.·elve months .. 

o In II!inois, through much of the year, 
most conventional lending was at 50% min­
i.-nu::n down-payments. 

o Build;.-rs in at least 14 states were 
b:irred from any benefit of the S3 billion 
G::--,~iA-FNMA conventional mortgage­
purchise program by provisions in their 
state laws: 

Co:rectives tone wrong. These horror 
tories ar.:: not illustrations of the effects of 

tig..."1-tt money per se:That alone would have 
been devastating enough. They are rather a 
summary of what .happens when the extra 
constraints of state usury laws are piled 
upon a tightening money supply. 

Even legislative attempts to soften the 
irnpact of usury laws turned into horror 
stories. 

e Pennsylvania ch:mged from a fixed to 
flexible usury bw ceiling, set each month 
at 2;·i percentage points above a fcde:al 
lx>nd rate ind:.:x. This was a ceiling for lo:i.n 
o::i:nitm::n:s. But by the time of the loan 
osing., th:! commitment rate was hr under 

the market. 

o Illinois raised its usury-law ceiling 
three times in seven years: From 6% to 7% · 
after the 1966 credit crunch. From 7% to 8% 
after 1969-70. And from 8%-91/2% in Jt1ly 
1974. By the time the 9½ % ratecame; it was 
already far below the market .. And the pre­
vious two changes came after that credit:, 
crunch had nm its course. 

o Virginia appears to have a model usury # 

law. No ceiling, no restriction on foes. But 
it expressly forbids variable-rate loans, 
which are coming to be regarded as the sal­
vation of the mortgage market. 

e Each time a usury law is changed, an 
agonizing legislative battle seems to be re­
quired. 

Extra turn of the screw. The usury laws 
intcnsi£y ,the harm whenever .the housing 
market is ;.!ready suffering from tight 
money, and they hamper attempts to rescue 
the market. 

In easy-money times, the laws are vir­
tually unseen. Thus in Florida, Arizona and 
Texas, interest rates never rose high enough 
to chalienge the 10% ceilings-until 1974. 
Builders may not even have been aware 
there was a state t1sury law. Hence the unex-

pectedness of the mortgage discounts, 
which put some builders in serious 
jeopardy. 

California at first adjusted to its lOo/. ceil• 
ing-aff ecting orilylendersothenhan banks 
or savings and loan associations, With dis• 
count points. But when wme bankers with 
mortgage-company customers expressed 
concern that points, even to the seller, 
might be construed as part.of the borrower's 
interest payment, there was panic. Conven• 
tional lending h .. 1ti:d and only a.few hardy 
mortgage bankers continued to make FHA· · 
VA loans-putting out money at· 3 })Oints of 
discount when it was costing them 61/i 
points from FNMA. 

California banks and savings and loans, 
which in normal times provide the bulk of 
the state's mortgage money, are exempt . 
from the usury·bw. 

But in .summer of 1974, the exempt 
lenders we.re virtually out of the mortgage 
market. Nearly aH the state'$ mortgage 
money was from out-of-state sources, 
mostly FNMA, funnelled bymongage bank­
. ers-until the legal questions about points 
were raised .. There is stiU no definitive rul­
ing from the attorney general's office. 

OVER 

CRAZY QUILT OF STATE USURY LAWS 

A!a!/3:r.a Oa>!zwa~e Arizona 
Minnesota Ggorgia Arkansas 
NawYori\ 11:inois Califotr.ia 
Oh:O Iowa District of 
v.-,r:1ont N~w Jers~,t co:umbia 

t::,.A"" Oak~ta Florida 
Sout:i Carolina fd~ho 

C~ilir.g al31J 

co~ers FHA-VA 

Ca!:~ornia 
Missouri 

Kansas 
Louisiana 
Mar1?Jrnl 

Ceiling covers 
corpon!ions 

Arkar.sa> 
Cal,!omia 

Interest Ceilings 

10% 

Missouri CQ!oraco 
ll!ississippi Nevada 
Mor:tana \-J~"'iir:3!on 
N~w Mexico Wi,cor.sin 
Oklahoma 
O,egon 
Puerto Rico 
South Oa~ota 
Tennessee 
Tex,s 

Some l<?nders 
are uempte<f 

C3f.!ornt3 
Cc!otaoo 

Floating 

A!asl<a 
Penr.sylv,mia 

Co:0r3(!0 
Oi$llid of 

'j 

C<-.r,:~ Nor.llCWana 
lrffl;ara tfttH~1t 
Ke.-~ R.'lola b!a.-.:1 
Mai.·.e It.al\ 
Ma~""usells Wyo,nint 
M~3A 

. 

P.es:rlclt fees 
an.d.-dl~ 

- titw Jelstf 
Ke,r,1.!t«:ct 

t-J~~as\a.·• Mon!ana Ohio Columbia Nt/f York 
On.o IJev~da 

TenMSSH 

··-"e!, .. ":f :..:•J!i !Jg :-~ r.1J\1,'1-.;m. 

· ··ce,e,s \'.\: FH.\ ,:; ex')"'l~I. 

Oidaho:na 

. ' 

N,;~::,- U:m:y law; cvn!J;n J'\:;:n?:O;,;s p,o,.isicns. a~d in:erp:e!a:icns. char.c;"! fr':'qu~ly, 
C')--:1iete a~ccr~;y o! t.•1::; tdb1e c1rmot b-~ gu~rat'i!-?'.!~ at da!t of ~!,bi::a::oa 

-
lt>;!ia."lJ F'ef'r.$ylvm 
MJ')IJ."<I \'etMQlf 
t,!.chigll'I WutV:r;;i,na 
M:ss'ss'poi \'!!sqi.15,n 

ROIJE.RT J •. l\1YLOD, EXECUTIVE \JCE !'RblDENT, ADVA:-.Cr.D MORTGACt c:oRr., DE:TRotT, .MICH. 

--------------------------------,--------.,--------------------' 
l1eprintc>d from House & llornf:. J.:,n1n:y. 1975 by p;,rmission 



In Maryland and the District of Columbia, 
tl1e 10% ceilings-r:iised, after much agony, 
from earlier 8% ceilings-allow no fees or 
discotmts of any kind. Hence, lenders ha\·e 
felt unable to afford mortgages since the fall 
of 1973. 

had one of the strongest economies in the 
Midwest; Detroit was hobbled b>• auto 
la>·offs that had begun late in 1973. But Jlli­
nois had a usury Jaw ceiling of 8% until July 
of 1974; .Michigan has had no ctiling since 
1970. 

These contrasts were muted later in the year 
as disintermcdiation became universal. (In­
terest rates 2nd usury ceilings were lower 
five years ago.) · 

History. It's h;ud to find even a historical 
rationale for the usury Jaws affecting horn, 

'thwarted rescues. The mor,ey-market Over rhe entire first half, Chicago one-to- mortgages. They do not appear to have aris-
salvagl! efforts of federal agencies are repeat· four family per,nits fcll 47% from their five- en in respons·e to any specific local abuse but 
edl)• hamstrung by state usury laws. Ken- y1.:2r average; Detroit's fell .only 25%. rather as a carryover from the old. English 
neth Plant, research vice president for the 1n the second quarter of 1974, when a new· common law. 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. (Freddie round of disinrermediation began, Chicago The conc.cpt of usur;· grew in the medi­
Mac), has reported that 80% of his agency's home permits fell 26% from their first- ·eval church and applied original!; to any 
commitments in 1973 and 1974 were con- quarter annual rate; Detroit's increased by form of interest. Usur;-law provisions in 

.... ··. <:en.trated .in five of the nation.'s 12 HQ.me - 7%. more or less their present forr.1 were p~;t of 
.::'f'~J3tii-..k,Hstiicts, i .. lar~cl'arit>esa~<:.the .AniUn.the third quarter, when disinter- Queen Anne's Statutes, enacted in the I 7th 

. /'?'.b$tizy Jaws in the ether districts were more mediation grew more severe but Chic2go's century. A lender's market area, in that day, 
'~lfictive, · A 0:,~iJ;az: p;Htem :would . be ceilbg was raised to 9½ %, the annual rate might have been only a few square miles. 
· toiind ih the F~derafffiU~nal Mortgage As- of Chicago home permits increased 23%:. This English law applied also in the Ameri­
soci.ation's operations. Laws barring dis- over the first half rate and Detroit's declined can colonies and, when the first state cons ti· 
counts and fees are blocking application of by 9%. tutions were drawn, after the Revolution, 
the GNMA-FNMA p!an--even in states Nationwide effect. In an earlier tight- they incorporated usury laws. 
that have no usury law ceilings. Variable- money period, the entire national decline in It is interesting th.it most of these original 
rate mortgages wouk be hobbled by interest the first half of 1969, when home permits state usury laws had interest ceilings of 
ceilings or restrictions on fees in at least two fell to the third lowest level since World War 6%-ceilings that survived in.tact in most 
thhds of the states. II, was concentrated in nine states where states as late as 1966. 

Disparity compounded. There is no con- usury ceilings v,·ere 7½% or less. States A question of fairness. The laws are also 
sistency between state usury laws. That is with 7% ceilings had three times the com- lacking in internal rationale. What protec­
one reason they do so much harm. posite decline of sta~es with 71/2 % ceilings. tion is afforded to borrowers, for example, 

. , Usury~law ~~i!ings wts.Y~f,r,;tp.&i; . .(!p.m ·" the. l~ states ,tl1at haq 8% c~ilings, when some lenders are permitted to cr.arge · 
g,t.~f#?.-t"%';, Jti:!i'Offle°'l-f':tffiffi':d!trs¥.!tcS/ih1:'f ,.. ph'rl)'ifs iniiea:iea' l-~~t in. the first' whatever interest and fres they find :::1eces-
apply to F°HA VA as well as conventional quarter and, then; as interest rates kept ris- sary for home mortg:1ges 2nd other lenders 

· home mortgages; in the others, only to con- ing, declined 2 % in the second quarter. are sharply restricted?-
ventionals. The truth is, usury laws are window dr,~ss· 

Some states do not c0nsider discounts to ing, retained for a token function. Th.::-· :re 
the seller part of the interest rate. Other . • iptended to be Yisible, without interfering 
statesspecificallyoudawdiscourns and fees with the workings of the mortgage market. 
ofva.riouskinds. Some even outlaw origina- When the ceilings do collide with market 
tion fees and late payment fees. In most rates, they are-usu2llr-modified, but 
states, however, there is no specific Ian- only a{ ter long delays. By then, the damage 
guage or official ruling on the treatment of has already been done. 
points and fees, leaving a gray area subject · I have been unable to discern 2ny interest 
to panic and confusion. group that benefits by retaining usury ceil-

Abalf-dozen states exempt certain classes ings. But there is inertia to be overcome in 
of lenders from their usury laws. Typically, making any change, and there is political 
these are loca~h•-based hanks or savings in- mileage in "restricting the mon-:ylenders." 
stitutions. (In California, it is any bank or Some remedies. A few states han: suc-
S&.L, local.or otherwise.)" -ceeded recently in removing :ill usury ceil-

Several states, the b.rgest CaJifomia, have ings--:hough, as noted, not all o,her restric-
the same·usury-law ceiling for corporations tions. These include Virsinia, :-.1ich.gan, 
2sforindividuals, thus making construction and since April 1974, North Carolina. One 
loans and income-property mortgages sub- strategy has been to remove ceilings tempo-
ject to the same con~traints as home mort- rarily, for a one or two-year period, to test 
gages. what may happen in the mortgage in:nket 

Timetable of damages. Usury laws appear without their "protection." No adverse cf-
to do most of their d2mage to local housing fects haw been uncovered yet and Virginia's 
markets jn the early months of a tight- open rate was made permanent after two 
money period, before the credit crunch is years . .Michigan's was extended to 1977. 
all-pervasive, and again in the·eady months This is a strategy which deserves a ccn-
of recovery, when mortga&e flow·s are re- certed push by all segr1i:nts of the housing 
suming. · industry in every st.He ,,·here usury laws 

It's sometimes difficult to isolate the prevail. 
\lsur;-law ir.~p.1ct. This 'was p:irticularly . PerhJps a more effective strater-y would 
true in 1974, when there were so many other .be to work for a fedi:ral !aw overridi!1g state 
factors-enviro.nment.1I restraints, over- usury l.,ws as part of some future National 
building and variatloris in local economies. Housing Act. We rccogni::e that credit is the 
But .. a instructive comp:.rison may be made key to the functit,ning of the housing in-
between Chicago and Detroit, Midwest dustry and the fulfillrnc11t of the mtion's 
markets.with a minim.um of environmental hon~ing needs. Ck.irlr, one of the prcreq~1i-
restr,1ints, a minimum o! over-building in sites to a smooth flow nf hnu,inr n..:dtr i5 
011c-iarmiy nomes and about equally over- the n·mov:il t,f such ,1rttfa:ial ohstructions 
built in condominiums. Chicago in 1974 as the st.Ile i1s•.rrr l.lws. I 

·-----·--·---------·----.. ---- .. ---·-- ---·----------- ·---·----------- ____ ____J 

....._____ ---

.. 



J:i~~,, ! .. ..,,, " r, , . , ' ![:j RLJ'.1-", · :, 1 L 1 ,JI ~,:S as recorded 111 - Compiled for your record1 by -ff c:..,AFL C0' 1 ._::r~:· :--JI<VAD.t\ ___ -.-_____ T_I_T __ L_E_1_N_S_U_T_RANCE AND TRUST COMPANY 

t,µil PR!NC IP,\l !:'.."'_"_EHS DOLLAR V ALU: ACTIVITY No. ol TRUST DEEDS 

,' !1--
-.Q VALLEY BANK OF NEVADA 
- WEYERHAEUSER MTG. CO. :-e. F. N. B. OF NEVADA 

,i: NEVADA S/L ASSOC. 
,1!,' 

• MASON-McDUFFIE INV. CO. 
FIRST WESTERN Sf L ASSOC. 
WESTERN MORTGAGE CO. 
WESTERN PACIFIC 
PIEDMONT MTG. CO. 
BANKERS MTG. CO. 
HOME SAVINGS 
COLWELL CO. 
NEVADA STATE BANK 
BANK OF NEVADA 
INVESTORS MTG. CO. 
FRONTIER SAVINGS ASSOC. 
LOMAS & NETTLETON CO. 
PIONEER CITIZENS BANK 
MEAIRS CO. 
UTILITY FINANCIAL CORP. 
C. I. T. MORTGAGE CO. 
NEVADA NATIONAL BANK 

INDIVIDU 
TOTALS 

197 4 

62,814,167. 
38,553,015. 
24,854,765. 
21, 252, 561. 
18,580,675. 
17,516,522. 
15,843,249. 
10, 498, 825. 
10, 362, 635. 
9,856, 900. 
9, 364, 910. 
7, 609, 296. 
7,359,764. 
7,299,157. 
7,062,522. 
5,440, 631. 
4,137,315. 
3,198,737. 
2, 385, 450. 
2, 154, 062. 
1, 221, 387. 

985,705. 

288 352 250. 
445 14 304. 
7 34, 266, 554. 

1 9 7 3 

46,851,911. 
51,369,531. 
51, 872, 906. 
22, 652, 983. 
28, 189, 769 . 
21,726,061. 
22,738,191. 
12,644,715. 
2 1 , l 7 3, 34 3. 
14,716,240. 
4,909,113. 

19,497,700. 
10,809, 042. 
24,730, 180. 

8, 688, 285. 
7 ,.779, 457. 
6, 269, 850. 
2,780, 991. 
3,211,675. 
4, 988,973. 

91,309. 
3,839,272. 

3 1 531 4 7. 
456 113 682. 
847,845,179. 

1 9 7 2 

44,357,011. 
52, 022, 342. 
3 8, 341 , 7 3 3. 
13,759, 344. 
22,693,825. 
12,827,697. 
12,806,082. 
15, 322, 300. .,._ 
30, 143, 566. 
18,727, 980. 
16, 714, 668. 
13, 906, 646. 
21,301,006. 
27,861, 028. 

9, 303,403. 
6, 694, 562. 
9, 850, 059. 
1,403,831. 

10,860, 130. 

2, 958, 146. 

807, 152, 948. 

1974 197 3 

402 500 
769 1165 
696 1054 
424 557 
659 886 
449 394 
480 580 
319 300 
2 00 322 
343 478 

99 114 
211 417 
124 186 
310 622 
272 356 
17 9 243 
136 17 9 
70 78 
88 116 

179 205 
84 11 
93 174 

6586 
6468 

13054 

_____ ,,...'1------------------------------------------, 

1972 

409 
1180 
714 
307 
7 58 
381 
513 
4 31 
687 
783 
253 
397 
217 
703 
404 
184 
167 

38 
429 

17 3 

This -t~port is furnished as a public service by Title Insurance and Trust Company, but no responsibiliiy./is assu 



•· 
TIIREE YEJ\R SUM1',J 1\H Y 
1 97 4 ,:, 1 9 7 1 ,:, l 9 7 2 

.------------- ··•···· ··- -----·····--- ··-----
ITEMS OF INTEREST 

No. of 
DEEDS 

REAL PROPERTY 
TRANS FER TAX 

Year 

1974 
197 3 

1972 

No. 
2 0, 365 
22, 538 
20,623 

Arnount 

$391.727.21 
493,872. 32 
405.343.23 

BUILDING PERMITS 
Year No. Amount 

COUNTY OF CLARK 
1974 5,500 $124,522,053. 
1973 8,614 257,245,263. 
1972 8,256 231,212,738 

CITY OF LAS VEGAS 
1974 4,775 $47,091,888. 
1973 5,648 51,588.818 
1972 5,573 65.526,318 

NOR TH LAS VEGAS 
1974 1, 072 $ 4, 596, 67 0. 
197 3 1,065 8,872,220. 
1972 l, 346 10, 316, 804. 

HENDERSON 

1974 1,050 $ 5, 593, 651. 
197 3 1,753 6,728,176. 
1972 1, 700 5,774,417. 

BOULDER CITY 

1974 418 $ 2,535, 153. 
197 3 572 6, 053, 632. 
1972 496 6, 651, 35 3. 

med for the accuracy herein 

487 



• 

-

-

•~, . 

F. R. BREEN 

BR.EEN, YOUNG, WHITEHEAD & HOY 
CHARTER.ED 

ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELLORS AT LAW 

232 COUR.T STREET 

C. CLIFTON YOUNC 

JERRY C,,R.R WHITEHEAD 
DAVID R. HOY 

R.ENO, NEVADA 89501 

AR.EA CODE 702 786·7600 

LAKE TAHOE OFFICE 
PACE BUILDING 

R.OUND HILL 
P. 0. BOX 2100 

ZEPHYR COVE, NEVADA 89448 
A.C.702 588·G667 

MILOS TEllZICH 

DAVID ll. BELDINC 
RICHARD BENNETT 

R.OCER A. BERCMI\NN · 

JEFFREY K. R.AHBECI. 

Mr. Jordan Crouch 

April 8, 1975 

Nevada Bankers Association 
P. o. Box 2493 
Reno, Nevada 

Re: SB381 

Dear Jordan: 

OR 882 • 6790 

I have compared SB381 and Title 7 of Public Law 
93-495, the Federal Equal Credit Opportunity Act, and with 
the following amendments to SB381 I can see no reason why 
the Bankers Association should not be able to support the 
amended bill. 

I have set out the section of SB381 as it is now 
in the bill, and following that I have set out the suggested 
amendment • =:--, 

SEC.9. "Person" means a natural person, association, 
part~ership, corporation or other legal entity. 

Suggested amendr:1en t: 

"SEC.9. "Person" means a natural person, association, 
partnership, corporation, government or governmental subdivision 

· or agency or other legal entity." 

SEC.11. 1. It is unlawful for any creditor to dis­
criminate against any a?pl~cant on the basis of the applicant's 
sex or marital status with respect to any aspeqt of a credit 
transact~on. 
2. Such dis-::1.·imination includes any instance where an appli­
cant is affected adversely by a creditor's practice of: 



> • 

• 

-

Mr. Jordan Crouch 
April 8, 1975 
Pag,e Two 

489 

· (a) Imposing more stringent standards of creditworthiness 
upon applicants of one sex than upon applicants of the other 
·sex or upon applicants belonging to one marital status group 
·than upon applicants belonging to another such group; or 

(b) Making loans to applicants of one sex or marital st~tus 
group upon terms or conditions that are less favorable than 
the terms or conditions of loans made to applicants of the 
other sex or another marital status group~ 

Sug.gested amendment: 
and 2(b). The reason for this 
the Federal Act. The parts of 
referring to differences based 
covered under the Act. 

Delete sub-section 2, 2(a) 
is it does not appear in 
sub-section 2(a) and 2(b). 
on sex are already adequately 

The reason for deleting the reference to "marital 
Stdtus group" is because the term itself is not defined and 
is ambiguous. Does it refer to single persons versus 
married persons versus persons legally separated versus 
widowed persons, living together but unmarried, age, number 
of dependents, social or financial status or what? 

SEC .• 1.2. .1.. A creditor shall consid.er the combined 
income of both husband and wife for the purpose of extending 
credit to a married couple and shall not automatically 
exc~ude the income of the wife. The creditor shall deter­
mine the creditworthiness of the couple upon a reasonable 
evaluation of the past, present and foreseeable economic 
circumstances of both spouses. 

i would suggest that this be changed to read as 
follows: 

"SEC.12. 1. A creditor shall consider the combined 
income of both husband and wife if they are living together 
for the purpose of extending credit to such married couple 
and shall not ~xclude the income of either without just 
cause. The creditor shall deterro.ine the creditworthiness of 
the couple upon a reasonable evaluation of the past, present, 
and foreseeable economic circu~stances of both spouses." 

SEC. 12. 2. A request for the signatures of both 
parties to a marriage for the purpose of creating a valid 

·1ien or passing clear title does not constitute credit dis­
crimination. 

I suggest the following amendment: 



. . 

• 

-

Mr. Jordan Crouch 
April 8, 1975 
Page Three 490 

"2. A request for the signatures of both parties 
to a marriage for tha purpose of creating a valid lien passing 
clear title waiving inchoate rights to property or assigning 
earnings shall not constitute discrimination under this title." 

I would also suggest the addition to Section 12 of 
a subsection 3, to read as follows: 

"SEC.12. 3. An in uir of marital status shall not 
constitute or riurposes of this ti _e 1. such 
inquiry is for the purpose of ~sc~rtaining the creditor's 
rights and remedies aoplicable to the particular extension 
of credit, and not to discriminate 1.n a determination of 
creditworthiness. 11 

The reason for in:.::luding this is that this is in­
cluded in the Federal Act, Section 70l(b), and it would be 
almost impossible for any credit agency to even have a credit 
application filled out if this question could ndt be asked. 

I would also suggest a subsection 4 be added to 
Section 12 which would read as follows: 

"SEC.12. 4. Consideration or aoplication ·of State 
property laws directly or indirectly ··affecting credi tworthi.­
ness shall not constitute c:!1.scrimination for purposes of tliis 
title. 11 

This is the language of 705(b), Public Law 93-495, 
and here again, it would be almost impossible to consider 
the creditworthiness of an individual or of a married couple 
if the state laws as to separate or community property in 
Nevada were not considered, and particularly in Nevada where 
we have such a large percentage of people who own property 
out-of-state. 

SEC.14. A credit reporting agency shall i4entify 
separately within its records of the reports it delivers, 
the credit !1.istories of any person, the person I s spouse, if 
any, and the joint accounts of the person and spouse, if any, 
to the extent that such information is available to the agency. 

The suggested amendment is: 

"SEC. 14. A credit reporting agency shall identify 
separately within its records of the reports it delivers, 
the credit histories of any person, the person's spouse, if 
~:he parti~re then living together, if any, and the joint 
accounts of the person and spouse -;-Tf any, to the extent that 
such information is available to the agency. 



. . 

• 

-

-

Mr. Jordan Crouch 
11.pril 8, 19 7 5 
Page Four 

491 

SEC. -18. 1. Any person injured by a discriminatory 
credit practice within the scope of the provisions of sections 
2 to 18, inclusive, of this act may apply directly to the 
district court for relief. If the court determines that the 
creditor has violated any of such provisions and that the 
plaintiff has been injured thereby, the court may enjoin the 
creditor from continued violation, award damages to the 
plaintiff or grant both measures of relie£. 

2. A person may not pursue the remedy provided under this 
section if he is pursuing any remedy provided under the 
federal Equal Credit Opportunity Act (12 u.s.c. §1691) with 
respect to the same grievance. 

I would suggest the addition of a subsection 3 and 
subsection 4 to Section 18; the suggested subsection 3 would 
read as follows: 

"3. No provision of this act imposing any lial±>ility 
shall apply to any act done or omitted in good faith in 
conformity with any rule, regulation or interpretation there-
of by the division, notwithstanding that after such act or 
omission has occurred, such rule, regulation, or interpreta­
tion is amended,-rescinded, or determined by judicial or · 
other authority to be invalid for any reason." 

The suggested subsection 4 would read as follows: 

"4. Any action brought under the provisions of this 
act shall be commenced within one year from the date of the 
occurrence of the violation." 

These two subsections are suggested in order to 
avoid inconsistencies with the federal act. The justifica­
tion for the suggested subsection 3 is self-evident, namely, 
a lender should be able to rely on regulations or interpre­
tations until declared invalid. 

The suggested subsection 4 is to bring the twd acts 
into conformity. 

One of the big problems I see in this bill is 
what effect, if any, the state law will have on national 
banks and if it is determined that state law does not 
apply to national banks, then these differences would give 



,. 

--

-

Mr. Jordan Crouch 
April 8, 1975 
Page Five 

492 

competitive advantage for the national banks against state 
banks. For example, national banks would have a one year 
statute of limitations and state banks would probably be 
3Ubject to a three year statute of limitations. N.R.S. 
11.190(3) (a) which provides that the period for the cormnence­
ment of actions is thre~ years "on an action upon a liab_ili ty 
created by statute." · 

As I said before, if the bill could be amended as 
·p-ro·V'.:i:cled ·here-in, :r c·ertainly think · the bankers could support 
SB381. 

I am enclosing a copy of Public Law 93-495 in the 
event Senator Gojack does not have one. 

FRB/p 
En.closure 

Very truly yours, 

F. R. Breen 

• 

. ,• 



• 

fftfeichmsnf 
·:1-

My name is Bill Kottinger. I'm a Vice President of Paine, 

Webber, Jackson & Curtis, members of the New York Stock Exchange. 

We are major dealers in short term money market instruments. 

I am here to lend my support to Senate Bill 3J'ft and urge 

its passage. 

The money markets of our country since 1970 have been 

severely strained. Financial Institutions have been struggling 

with the problems of inflation, recession~ shortages and the 

energy crisis and the accompanying financial consequences. The 

Banking Sys tern has suffered -~.hrough periods of measurable dis -

intermediation. The newspapers have carried headlines describ­

ing the recurring "credit crunches". We have seen just recently 

in the Bond Markets the growing impact of a gigantic federal 

deficit. I might point out the Banking System will be asked to 

absorb, by far, the largest percentagi of the Government's 

deficit financing. Competition for capital could reach extreme 

levels ~s we g6 into fiscal 1976 and 1977 with a federal deficit 

that could reach in excess of 150 billion dollars. This month 

the Bond Market faces a staggering calender of new bond offer­

ings. Secretary of the Treasury Simo~ in a news conference 

recently raised his estimate of treasury offerings for the 

first 6 months of this year from 28 billion to 41 billion. 

The Treasury needs this calendar year are put at $80 billion, 

more than has ever been raised publicly by all borrowers in any 

previous year. All of this points to an almost inescapable 

• conclusion that we are going to see much higher interest rates 



• 

• 

-2-

in the future. Even with an accommodating posture by the FRB 

we will be very lucky if we can avoid recurring periods of 

extremely tight credit. 

In the past week Bond yields have jumped to new 1975 highs. 

A striking example of the yield increases occurred when for the 

first time since last September, a double digit interest rate 

was paid by Gulf States Utilities,~ high-grade utility, on 

their 40MM offering of double A 30 year first mortage bonds 

priced at 10%. New 52 week Treasury Bills were auctioned at 

an average 6.47% up.from 5.637% at the prec~eding sale and the 

highest since last November 13. Postponements of planned bond 

sales have become commonplace due to the u~settled market con­

ditions. Twelve major corporations announced delays in the 

· past week, a record.. Those delays includ.ed 300MM Texaco, 200:MM 

United Aircraft, 200MM Manufacturers Hanover Bank and l00MM 

Ashland Oil. Long Governments were very weak as were State and 

City Bonds. Late Monday; the City of Montreal delayed its 75~~1 

offering of 10 year debentures. 

The cost of money, interest rates, becomes less important 

when we consider that we must face up to the simple fact that 

what we are really concerned about is - wi1.l there be money 

available at any price. 

Last year certain geographical areas in our country, 

particularly in the South and Southeast, saw the banks in 

those regions operating under State Usury Laws where their 

limit was 300 to 400 Basis Points below the existing prime 



• 
-3-

rate. This situation effectively cut off the availability of 

capital through normal commercial banking channels. (For a 

brief time in California last year Banks were paying in excess 

0£ 12% on CD's or to rephrase that situatio11:,Bank Depositors 

were charging banks illegal or usurious rates under the State 

Laws of California.) 

The Short Term money markets in our country are the most 

competitive markets in the world. Theref6re, revising the pro­

vision which limits agreed interest rates by permitting a hjgher 

limit doesn't automatically open a Pandora's box of higher Interest 

Rates. In the current economic climate it -is essential that 

you anticipate the possible problems that could occur. You 

should provide our Banks in Nevada with the greatest flexibil-

ity possible. A healthy banking industry is the single most 

important economic resource our state can have. 

To summarize: 

1. Raising Interest Ceilings does not automatically in­

crease the cost of borrowing due to the extreme competitive 

conditions in the money markets. 

2. Raising ceilings do serve the purpose of assuring 

availability of funds. 
1;<«~ 

3. Since California,our sister state,saw fit to exclude 

banks from usury laws, some relief should be given our banks 

for obvious competitive reasons. 

4, And finally, because of the unique economic conditions 

• that f~ce our country. This Ammendment anticipates a situation 

whereby needed statuatory relief to our banks wbuld exist. 




